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The Provo Third Ward meetinghouse is one of the earliest English Parish 
Gothic churches in Utah and one of the best churches of any kind in the county,

The exciting exterior of the chapel features a tall, imposing vestry tower 
at the southeast corner of the chapel. The tower is one of the most finely 
detailed in the state. It has a large, Roman-arched bay above which are thick 
and tall rectangular windows with red sandstone lintels; then a course of 
corbeled brickwork; a brick panel with the building inscription engraved in 
stone in the east side; four pairs of tall, Roman-arched, open-air bays which 
serve as the belfry; more corbeled courses, and finally, decorative wood 
molding at the base of a two-tiered, segmented, conical steeple which is 
finished off with a metal weathervane. Another feature of the tower is its 
corner buttressing. Pairs of very decoratively carved pinnacles are found at 
the base of the steeple at the four corners.

The front gable of the chapel is also impressive. It features a huge 
Roman bay within which is a beautiful Roman window which has five delicate 
Gothic-arched mullions and ornate lead-framed and stained glass panes. This 
and all other major arches are corbeled with stone or brick. Above the large 
frontal window are three small louvered bays with Roman arches. At the gable 
top is a very sculpturesque plaster trimpiece. Similar trim is found at the 
gable bottom as a facade to the arches. At the south of the building is an 
interesting semi-circular or apse-like staircase shell. It is built of red 
stone and extends from grade to three stories above grade. Side windows on 
the chapel are Gothic with corbeled arches.

The interior, with its rambling and maze-like plan, is disappointing. 
There are many confusing hallways and stairways added to accommodate to 
changing needs. The building is not a split level, but has three full floors 
in many areas.

The Amusement Hall, built in 1913, is of lighter colored brick. The 
double doors are framed by a gracheted frontpiece with a large, round arched 
window above the entry. The ornamental brick work is much simpler than that 
in the chapel. It consists mostly of raised or recessed brick panels. A 
small dormer is centered in the hipped roof above the entrance. Its 
residential scale detracts from the massing of the roof.

The Provo Third Ward chapel was probably built with plans designed by 
Richard Watkins who designed the Maeser Elementary School in Provo which also 
has a hall and large front arches similar to the Third Ward.

In 1935-40 the interior of the chapel was completely remodeled under the 
direction of architect Fred Markham. The curved ceiling was changed to a 
straight surface; doors were cut on the south and a porch was extended over 
the stairs which were then added. The north stairway was altered and a 
hallway constructed to the east of classrooms located in the basement. The 
link between the chapel and the amusement hall was rebuilt and another floor 
added, it was during this remodeling that the clear glass windows in the 
chapel were replaced by stain glass windows designed by Bennett Glass.

In 1968, some of the rooms were further renovated.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Provo Third Ward meetinghouse (1903) is one of the earliest English 
Parish Gothic churches in Utah and one of the most architecturally significant 
church buildings in Utah County. The tall vestry tower is one of the most 
finely detailed in the state. The building was probably designed by Richard 
Watkins, whose best known church is the Spring City Tabernacle. He was also 
the architect for numerous school buildings, including the Spring City School 
(National Register), and his work was well known throughout Utah County and 
other central Utah counties at the turn of the century. The architect for the 
Amusement Hall addition (1913) is unknown; its design, though not a good 
example, reflects the influence of the Prairie Style, which was employed by 
several Utah architects in buildings for the Mormon Church.

The Provo Third Ward chapel and Amusement Hall are significant 
architectural assets of their community, and their cultural importance is a 
reflection of the aesthetic and religious imperatives of a people for whom 
piety and civic pride were simply two sides of the same coin. Historically, 
the choice of a chapel design evocative of traditional Christianity suggests a 
tangible expression of the restructuring of the public image of Mormonism 
under way at the turn of the century by the church's third generation 
leadership. This period is often referred to by historians as "the 
accommodation" of the Mormon Church to the social and political realities of 
the time. With the official abandonment of polygamy a decade earlier, the 
Church had worked quite conscientiously to erase its previous image as 
un-American, radical, and morally degenerate. The era of being more American 
than the rest of America had begun. While the whole subject of ecclesiastical 
design within the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints has not been 
satisfactorily addressed in terms of the historical environment, this 
conclusion is generally defensible . . . especially if one takes into account 
the accepted belief that a religious building is as much a statement of the 
material condition of a church as it is of its spiritual dynamism. The 
prosperous burghers of Provo could afford a large and dignified chapel, they 
could afford the conceit of a reproduction of an English parish church because 
their own version of Christianity had emerged from the cult phase and its 
established repute, in the minds of its adherents, fitted well with the 
prestige and status implicit in this particular design. The architecture of 
the Provo Third Ward is a document that tells us much about Provo and its 
people in 1903.

In 1901 the Latter-day Saint Church in Provo had been reorganized into 
three new ecclesiastical units (stakes). The Third Ward was created as part 
of what became known as the Utah Stake, and its boundaries included part of
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the oldest area of the city of Provo. Many of the residents of the ward were, 
or were descendants of, Provo's leading entrepreneurs, educators, politicians, 
and religious leaders. The Bishop of the ward, Thomas Nicholls Taylor, was 
both mayor of Provo (1900-1903) and a leading businessman. His building 
committee included Arthur Dixon, Edgar Perry, and H. J. Maiben--all local 
businessmen with interests in real estate, construction, and building 
supplies. (Dixon established one of the first brickyards in Provo and was a 
founder of the Provo Pressed Brick Company; Perry was in carpentry, and Maiben 
ran a paint and glass business.)

With the boosterish energy typical of their class, the building committee 
pushed the project through rapidly, taking care to involve as much local 
material and local craftsmanship as possible. The Liddiard and Collins 
families of stonemasons, and the Tolboe family of carpenters, plasterers and 
painters all ward members--were used in the construction, according to Provo 
architect Fred Markham. The cost of the new building was $11,000.

In 1913, to accommodate expanding church programs, members erected an 
adjoining amusement hall, finishing only the top floor for $15,000. The lower 
floor was finished in 1926 for $5,600. The Provo Third Ward Chapel and 
Amusement Hall served primarily as a religious center, but it also provided 
west-side citizens with many dances, musicals, fetes, sports contests, and so 
on. Although not an outstanding example of the Prairie Style, the amusement 
hall does indicate an awareness of contemporary design currents. Throughout 
the Mormon Church at this particular time, several examples of experimentation 
with the Prairie Style for ecclesiastical purposes are to be found.

The entire Provo Third Ward complex, chapel and amusement hall, 
establishes its significance within Provo's Mormon community by demonstrating 
the easy marriage of secular and religious activity found in Mormonism and may 
prove a useful guide to aesthetic developments in Mormon ecclesiastical 
architecture. The chapel, particularly, is a ornament of the community that 
produced it--and which it still rewards with its stately presence. In an area 
with few remaining church buildings of character, the Provo Third Ward is 
singular in its significance.


